

2025 Club Volleyball Coach Handbook

September 3, 2024

www.volleyballalberta.ca

NORTH 11759 Groat Road, Edmonton, AB T5M 3K6 p: 780-415-1703 SOUTH Unit #8, 135 Commercial Drive, Calgary AB, T3Z 2A7 p: 780-415-1703

volleyball Alberta

Table of Contents

Coach & Persons in Authority Eligibility for Club Volleyball	
Coaches with Infants/Children	
Selecting Your Team	4
Athlete Eligibility for Club Volleyball	
Signing Policy & Tryouts	
Roster Management	5
Volleyball Alberta Competitions	
New for 2025	6
Match Protocol	
Uniforms	7
Restricted Activities	7
Video Cameras	
Refuse & Responsibility Policy	
Fines and Sanctions	
Lost and Found	
Complaints & Conflict Resolution at VA Tournaments	9
Code of Conduct Concerns	
Athlete Health & Wellness	
Concussions	
Tournament Medical	
Rule of Two	11
Safe Sport & Abuse Free Sport	12
Volleyball Alberta Sponsors	

Coach & Persons in Authority Eligibility for Club Volleyball

- All leaders on team rosters must meet the Mandatory Requirements. Please review the <u>Volleyball Alberta</u> <u>Coaching Requirements</u> for full details and deadlines.
 - All clubs, coaches, and club staff must become members of Volleyball Alberta prior to participating in club tryouts or training. Volleyball Alberta (VA) provides its membership with administrative, instructional and professional services to assist in the development of volleyball in Alberta. These services include but are not limited to indoor and beach athlete development from grassroots to high performance programs, leadership development of coaches, referees, and club leaders, governance, insurance, sport advocacy, and business development. Please refer to <u>Volleyball Alberta membership</u> <u>benefits</u> for more information.
 - <u>Person in Authority Checks</u> must be completed by club and team personnel prior to participating in their role.
 - <u>Fines/Sanctions</u> may be issued if a mandatory requirement is incomplete by the due date.
- NEW for 2025: <u>Volleyball Canada 2025 Coaching Requirements</u> for Youth National Championships have been updated. Please review the requirements carefully if your team will be attending Nationals.
- All teams must have a designated head coach for the season who meets the mandatory head coach requirements. A head coach may not head coach more than one team in the same tournament weekend. The same individual may be designated as an assistant coach, manager, or trainer for additional teams in the same tournament weekend.
- A maximum of four team staff are permitted on the roster and allowed to sit on the bench. One of these team staff must be the head coach. A rostered team staff may act as the head coach in case of unexpected absence.
- The minimum age for team staff on the roster is 11 years of age.

Coaches with Infants/Children

- Team personnel who are parents of an infant (under the age of 1) will be supported by Volleyball Alberta in having the infant on the bench during matches. The infant must be appropriately secured in a hands-free baby carrier or in a stroller directly behind the bench. The team must notify the age class manager prior to the event to ensure that competition staff are aware. The team may also be asked to complete a Risk Acknowledgement form as they are exposing the infant to a higher-risk environment.
- Team personnel who are the parent/caregiver to any young children may leave the bench to attend to them during the match provided the referee is notified before they leave. If the parent is the Head Coach, the Assistant Coach would be permitted to temporarily act as head coach during this time.

Selecting Your Team

- A team must be composed of a minimum of 8 players up to a maximum of 15 players. A minimum of 6 players must be present in uniform during competition in order to be eligible to participate.
- For 15U 18U age class teams, a maximum of 15 players can be on the score sheet, in uniform, participate in the warm-up, sit on the bench, and participate in any given match.
 - Note: 15U teams must still align with the Developmental Substitution Rule.
- For 12U 14U age class teams, a maximum of 12 players can be on the score sheet, in uniform, and participate in any given match. Teams may have a maximum of 15 players on the roster, participate in warm-up, and sit on the bench.
- **12U–15U age class teams** that have **more than twelve players** at a tournament must submit the <u>Extended</u> <u>Roster Development Plan form</u>.
- Teams should register in the **most appropriate age class for their development level**. Team composition should be primarily of athletes within the same age class (consult Volleyball Alberta's Director of Technical Pathways for further information). Teams can only select one age class to compete in. Once an age class has been selected, teams must compete in the same age class for the entire season (including Nationals) except for 12U teams (see 12U competition regulations for details).

Athlete Eligibility for Club Volleyball

- Athletes need a Youth Competitive Player Indoor membership to be added to a team roster.
- The minimum age for athletes on the roster is 9 years of age. Always verify the age eligibility of an athlete using the <u>Age Categories</u> document before signing them to a team.
- NEW for 2025: The 18U Overage Exemption and the eligibility for post-secondary athletes has been updated this season. Please review the Age Categories document for full details. Some key changes to note:
 - The definition of a post-secondary athlete only includes athletes rostered as of October 1, 2024, in USport, CCAA, or CEGEP Division 1 volleyball programs (not including intramurals or club teams). Previously, the definition included athletes training "in whole or in part" with a post-secondary team (ex: "red-shirts").
 - Teams can have a maximum of two athletes who are currently rostered with post-secondary team and born Sept. 1 – Dec. 31, 2006. Head Coaches or team Managers must identify any athletes in this category using the <u>18U Overage & Post-Secondary Athlete Form</u>. Previously, all age-eligible 18U athletes were allowed without any post-secondary restrictions.
- Athletes cannot play on more than one team in the same tournament weekend.
- Athletes can often play up one age category without many challenges or limitations. However, thought and discussion should occur between the club, athlete, and family to determine the best environment for the athlete. There can be significant disparity if an athlete plays up two age categories, and clubs should review the <u>Playing Up in Age Categories</u> document prior to making a final decision.
- Volleyball Canada and Volleyball Alberta are committed to encouraging diversity, inclusion, equity and access
 in its administration, policies, programs, and activities as outlined in our <u>Diversity, Equity, & Inclusion policy</u>.
 We support the inclusion of transgender athletes and follow the <u>Volleyball Canada Trans Inclusion Policy</u>. As
 denoted in item 10 of the policy, individuals participating in development and recreational sport should be able

to participate in the gender with which they identify. This applies to our club volleyball system.

Signing Policy & Tryouts

Please review <u>2025 Indoor Signing & Tryout Process</u> for full details on LOI and tryout policies, as well as rationale and FAQ's.

- The 2024-2025 Indoor Club Season starts November 24, 2024, and ends May 31, 2025.
- Volleyball Alberta strongly recommends: Clubs are encouraged to refer to athlete development principles and be very deliberate with any indoor volleyball programming offered during the summer and fall. School volleyball places large demands on athletes and additional training places athletes in a position to develop overuse injuries and burnout.
- Volleyball Alberta Re-Signing LOI Form or LOI Signing Form are the ONLY binding contracts recognized by Volleyball Alberta.
- Coaches and teams should understand the 13U-15U Developmental Substitution Rules prior to selecting their teams. See 13U-15U Competition Regulations for more information.

Roster Management

- Volleyball Alberta recommends that athletes who may play up to fill roster spots as needed are added to those team rosters as early as possible in the season. These additions must be done prior to the roster lock.
- Tournament Roster Lock Deadlines: Review the tournament schedule on the <u>Club General Info page</u> for each tournament's roster lock deadline. Coaches should always use the <u>Roster Lock Guide</u> to check their athlete and team staff on the roster are correct prior to a roster lock.
 - Team Staff must have cleared <u>PIA Checks</u> before they can be an approved member that can be added to a roster. It may take up to 4 business days or more for a team staff to be approved by VA.
 - NEW for 2025: Rostered Team Staff must select their team role at the time of rostering. A how-to video will be available on the <u>How to Register page.</u>
- Season Roster Lock Deadline: The season roster lock deadline is the Premier #2 roster lock deadline for each age class. Please see the tournament schedule on the <u>Club General Info page</u> for full details.
- Roster Addition Requests: Changes made to official Volleyball Alberta rosters after the roster lock deadlines
 will only be considered under exceptional circumstances. All changes requested before Noon on Wednesday
 before the tournament are subject to a \$25 fee and must be submitted via the Late Roster Addition Form. After
 Noon on the Wednesday before the tournament OR after the season roster lock, the fee increases to \$50 and
 requests much be submitted via email to the Age Class Manager.
- Head Coaches will pick up and verify Official Rosters from Venue Coordinators prior to their first match on the first competition day. Official Rosters must be presented to the <u>referee</u> before every match. Only athletes & team staff who appear on the Official Roster and meet screening/training requirements will be allowed to compete.

Volleyball Alberta Competitions

- The rules listed in the current edition of the <u>Volleyball Canada Rule Book</u> are in effect unless otherwise specified under the Volleyball Alberta Competition Regulations. It is the duty and responsibility of all players and coaches to know the rules of the game and abide by them.
- <u>Tripleball</u> is the official competition format for Canadian regions offering 12U & 13U age competitions. The goal of Tripleball is to promote better skill development, participation, meaningful competition, and fun. All other age classes play standard volleyball format.
 - We recommend that 12U and 13U teams watch the <u>Tripleball Video</u> and practice the Tripleball format before tournaments, including the tripleball sequence and ball tossing.

New for 2025

- Please review the Volleyball Alberta 2025 Season Planner & Competition Regulations for information on the season competition structure and age class specific regulations.
- Volleyball Alberta staff recommend reviewing the <u>New for 2025</u> document for a snapshot of changes for this season.

Match Protocol

- Teams are guaranteed a minimum of five (5) matches for two-day tournaments.
- A First Referee will be used for all matches.
- For a match in which a team is participating, they will be responsible for the provision of one (1) Line Judge.
 - This individual must be a team player not registered as a starting member of the line-up,
 - This individual must be a team player not registered as the acting Libero (if applicable),
 - If a team does not have enough athletes to provide a Line Judge, the referee shall:
 - > Inquire to the opposition coach if they are willing to provide two (2) athletes to act as Line Judges.
 - Inquire to the opposition coach if they would prefer the match to commence with no Line Judges and the sole discretion of the First Referee.
- The timing of the <u>official warm-up protocol</u> will be a 2–4–4 model.
 - 2 minutes of shared court time for ball warm-up (E.g., dig-set, setter warm-up, etc.). Note: Shared court time will start when the court is available to both teams
 - 4 minutes official warm-up at the net Serving Team
 - 4 minutes official warm-up at the net Receiving Team

Be reminded that opposing teams are not permitted to use volleyballs in the free zone during the other teams allocated court time, this is an added component to help prevent concussions.

- Uniforms <u>must</u> be worn for the official warm-up. This allows the referee to accurately complete responsibilities prior to the start of the match and facilitates timely roster verification by referees.
- We recommend that teams use discretion when changing from warm-up shirts to uniforms in ALL Volleyball Alberta Premier tournaments and Provincials.
- Teams will resume switching sides between sets.
- Volleyball Alberta will utilize the following "End of Match Protocol":
 - After the match, teams must immediately go to their respective three-meter line, applaud for the other team & official(s) PRIOR to moving off court for team meetings/debriefs. Teams will not greet one another

before or after the match nor will they shake the referee(s) hand post-match. Teams will acknowledge the opposition and referee(s) by facing them and clapping prior to leaving the court.

- The intent of a handshake protocol is to congratulate and recognize the efforts of both teams and the referees while promoting good sportsmanship. VA's end of match protocol still achieves this goal, below is the rationale for why it's been modified from the traditional handshake:
 - A good portion of the club volleyball season is played during the height of cold/flu season, and this is one small way to help prevent the spread of germs and viruses. This will promote participation keeping athletes, coaches, and referees healthy and active by limiting absenteeism during the season.
 - Emotions can get high on occasion during the intensity of a match, removing face-to-face interactions immediately after the match will prevent the potential for inappropriate conduct.
 - > Teams for the next match are extremely eager to take over benches and begin their warm-up and this protocol speeds up the transition to help facilitate the start of the next match.
 - We understand some individuals may want to personally praise their peers on opposing teams; they are still able to do that after both teams have cleared court after the match has concluded. We encourage referees to provide friendly reminders to teams of this protocol, remarks can be documented on the scoresheet if required.

Uniforms

- Each registered team shall be dressed for competition as per the Volleyball Canada rulebook. The updated guidelines and Uniform Approval Request form will be available on <u>Volleyball Canada's Policy</u> page, under Competition Related Policies.
- Clubs are highly recommended to Request Uniform Approval from Volleyball Canada PRIOR to ordering uniforms by submitting design proofs. Once approval is granted, clubs would be sheltered from any potential costs associated with bringing uniforms up to standard during the club season.

Restricted Activities

- Please communicate to your athletes and families that pre-packed personal lunches and snacks that are contained within sports bags will be the only food allowed in any of the venues. No coolers, large containers, or appliances. No food preparation in the venue.
- Music may only be played for personal use with headphones during our events. Our venues are family friendly, and the content of music may be inappropriate or distracting to our members and other patrons.
- Noisemakers of any kind are not permitted at Volleyball Alberta events for any reason.
- It is expected that any teams or spectators using pom-poms or confetti clean up any debris from those items.
- Food is not permitted in gymnasiums at any venues.
- Running and warm-up activities are not permitted in stairwells, hallways, off-limit area, or other inappropriate
 areas of a facility or school. Use of in other activity spaces in multi-sport facilities (arenas, fields, rooms, closed
 off areas, private rooms, etc) is not permitted unless the team has pre-arranged a private rental with the facility.
 Balls may only be used outdoors, on match courts, or on warm-up courts if specified on the draw.
- Please do not block hallways, stairwells, or commandeer shared public spaces for team, pre-game, or postgame meetings.

Video Cameras

- Video cameras in the warm-up area are not permitted (for athletes, parents, or spectators).
- If handheld, a video camera may be operated by a team member sitting on the bench.
- Attaching video cameras to the post, scorer table, referee stand, etc. will not be allowed.
- If there is a vacant court next to the playing court that is not being utilized as a designated warm-up court or competition court for the event, cameras and tripods may be set-up in that space provided:
 - > There is no infringement on the participants of the playing court,
 - Cameras and spectators are not encroaching on the team bench, warm-up area, scorer's table, referee location, etc.
 - For facilities with 5+ meters of space behind the service zone (Genesis Centre in Calgary), cameras will be permitted on the playing surface behind the court, provided they are against the facility wall.
- **Remote Controlled Devices**: Any remote-controlled devices (drones, remote controlled cars) are not allowed at Volleyball Alberta events or in venues.

Refuse & Responsibility Policy

- All bottles, garbage, and personal items must be removed from the team bench after each game. It is the coach's responsibility to ensure this is completed after every match. Repeat offenders will not be permitted to participate in future Volleyball Alberta tournaments.
- Appropriate disposal of bottles or garbage and general cleanliness is expected in all areas of a facility, noncompliance is subject to a \$50 fine for each offense.
- Coaches and team staff are responsible for managing their bench and ensuring the area is clean after each match.

Fines and Sanctions

Please review the Fines and Sanctions for 2025. Fines may be applicable for violations of:

- Signing Policy
- Code of Conduct
- Coach Eligibility Requirements
- Competition Regulations
- Roster Policies
- Registration Policies

Lost and Found

At the end of each tournament, Volleyball Alberta staff return any lost and found items from a venue to the closest Volleyball Alberta office. To inquire about a lost and found item, please contact the Age Class Manager at your earliest convenience after an event.

We highly recommend that your team check the bench for personal items after each match.

Complaints & Conflict Resolution at VA Tournaments

To address a rule-related complaint during a match, teams should initiate a protest. A captain may only lodge a protest in the following circumstances: an error in applying a rule or rule interpretation, an improper decision of the Scorer who made a mistake on the rotational order or on the score. For full details on this process, go to page 16 of the <u>2025 Volleyball Alberta Competition Regulations</u>.

To file a <u>Safe Sport</u> concern of maltreatment, including sexual, emotional, physical abuse, neglect, harassment, bullying, exploitation or discrimination, call the Canadian Sport Helpline by phone or text at 1-888-83SPORT (77678), or email <u>info@abuse-free-sport.ca</u>.

Use the Volleyball Alberta Complaint Process Overview to find the appropriate contact for filing a complaint.

Code of Conduct Concerns

In-match conflict involving teams, score keepers, or lines people must be handled by the referees officiating the match, with support of the Referee Supervisor as required/if available.

If a coach has a concern about the conduct of a participant at Volleyball Alberta events, whether that is another coach, athlete, spectator, referee, or other person, the following process will be used:

- 1. Coaches bring their concern to onsite Volleyball Alberta staff.
- 2. Volleyball Alberta staff determine if any immediate actions and/or sanctions need to take place.
 - A Zero Tolerance Policy was put in place at Volleyball Alberta Premier Tournaments and Provincials as of February 11, 2022. It acts to maintain a safe and positive environment that is appropriate for youth sport. For incidents which require immediate actions following the Zero Tolerance Policy, the Volleyball Alberta on-call competition manager will be consulted. If necessary, a jury, which may include the Volleyball Alberta onsite staff, VA competitions managers, and/or a referee or referee supervisor, will be assembled to decide appropriate next steps.
 - VA Staff may request that an incident report be filled out.
- 2. Volleyball Alberta full-time staff or Discipline and Complaints chair may follow up on Code of Conduct concerns depending on the nature and severity of the incident.

Athlete Health & Wellness

Volleyball Alberta expects that:

- Team staff have athlete medical forms on-hand.
- Teams carry a first aid kit.

Volleyball Alberta also recommends that one of the team staff have first aid certification.

Concussions

Volleyball Alberta recognizes that concussions are a significant public health issue and have developed our <u>Concussion Protocol</u>. Of specific note are the expectations surrounding the team warm-up process to help prevent concussions. Volleyball Alberta has prepared a video with options for the <u>hitting warm-up</u>. Coaches should be prepared to follow concussion protocols and return to play best practices if an athlete suffers a concussion.

Tournament Medical

Athletic Therapy

Volleyball Alberta provides athletic therapy services during Premiers & Provincials. Athletic Therapists are a helpful resource for athletes who require concussion assessment, preventative taping, or recommendations for pain or minor injuries. Therapists are free for athletes to use; however, they are not onsite at all venues. For injuries sustained during a tournament, athletic therapists may make recommendations for an athlete's participation in remaining matches. It is expected that athletes who would like to see the therapist go to the venue where the therapist is on duty and bring their own medical supplies (tape, etc.) if applicable.

Suggested Protocol for Minor Injuries

- 1. Remove the athlete from play.
- 2. Contact the athlete's emergency contact.
- 3. Do not leave the athlete unattended until their emergency contact arrives.
- 4. Seek immediate medical attention if the athlete develops dizziness, difficulty breathing, fever, or changes to their mental status (confusion, vision changes).
- 5. The athlete may wish to seek medical attention (non-urgent) if the injury does not improve or requires medical imaging and/or further care.

Protocol for Major Injuries or Emergencies

- 1. Notify onsite Volleyball Alberta staff, who will enact the facilities Emergency Action Plan.
 - The VA staff or other pre-designated facility staff will call for medical assistance/ambulance.
 - Facility staff will escort medical personnel or ambulance.
- 2. A coach or team staff should contact the athlete's emergency contact. Coaches or team staff may be asked to provide any known medical conditions or medications to medical professionals if parents/guardians are not available.
- 3. After the athlete has been taken care of, please see the onsite VA staff to file an Incident/Accident Report.

Rule of Two

<u>Open, observable, and justifiable interactions and communications</u> are strongly recommended to foster safety, enhance protection, and help reduce vulnerability of both the athlete and adult(s) in a position of trust. Commonly referred to as the <u>Rule of Two</u>, it means that there will always be two screened and safety-trained adults with a participant, especially a minor athlete, when in a potentially vulnerable situation. Applying the Rule of Two is a measure that helps mitigate opportunities for maltreatment and abuse to occur.



For more information, visit volleyball.ca/en/about/safe-sport

Safe Sport & Abuse Free Sport

As of April 1, 2020, anyone associated with a Sport Canada-funded organization must be trained on conduct to prevent and address maltreatment. This includes ALL coaches, referees, and club administrative staff, and must be completed prior to participating in any club activity.

Starting this 2024/25 season, Volleyball Canada is a Signatory Organization of the Abuse-Free Sport program, and as such is bound by the Universal Code of Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in Sport (UCCMS). Volleyball Alberta members are therefore required to abide by the UCCMS and sign the Abuse-Free Sport Participant Consent. The purpose of the UCCMS is to advance a respectful sport culture that delivers quality, inclusive, welcoming and safe sport experiences.

Creating a culture where everyone can thrive is a shared responsibility. Whether you have direct contact with athletes or work in the background, Safe Sport Training promotes physical, psychological, and social health, and meets Sport Canada requirements for Safe Sport education. The safe sport module is a FREE, 90- minute eLearning module that gives all participants the tools to recognize, address, and prevent maltreatment in sport.

Please note that a current <u>Respect in Sport Group's Activity Leader</u> certificate is a recognized equivalent and meets the Safe Sport training requirements should you already have it.

Volleyball Alberta strives to offer a safe and enjoyable environment for all event participants and spectators. If any players, team staff members, staff, referees or spectators feel unsafe or have witnessed a behavior that may be inappropriate, they are strongly encouraged to approach a VA Representative, or they may contact the Abuse-Free Sport Helpline (1-888-837-7678). Please review <u>Volleyball Alberta's Safe Sport Complaint Process</u>, if you have a Safe Sport concern to report.

The Sport Helpline is an anonymous, confidential, independent, and bilingual service which allows individuals to share and validate their concerns, obtain guidance on required next steps, and be referred to other appropriate resources for follow up.



Volleyball Alberta Sponsors





Alberta

